
MINUTES 
CITY OF NORCO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 

 REGULAR MEETING 
March 30, 2011 

 

     

1. CALL TO ORDER:   7:00 PM 
 
2. ROLL CALL: Vice Chair Wright, Commission Members Jaffarian, Henderson 

and Leonard; Chair Hedges - absent 
 
3. STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director King, Senior Planner Robles and 

Deputy City Clerk Germain  
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Vice Chair Wright 
 
5. APPEAL NOTICE: Read by PD King 
 
6. HEARING FROM THE AUDIENCE ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA: 

NONE 
 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of March 9, 2011. Recommended Action: 

Approval (Deputy City Clerk) 
M/S HENDERSON/JAFFARIAN to approve the minutes of March 9, 2011 as written 
 
AYES: WRIGHT, HENDERSON, JAFFARIAN, LEONARD  
ABSENT:  HEDGES       Motion Passed 
 
8. CONTINUED ITEMS:  NONE 
  
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A.   Resolution 2011-___: Conditional Use Permit 2011-03 (Sadati): A 
Request for Approval to Allow a 3,240 Square-Foot Corral Cover at 4057 
Pedley Avenue Located within the A-1-20 Zone. Recommended Action: 
Approval (SP Robles) 

SP Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. She noted that the 
proposed building has been reviewed and meets all requirements. She added that the 
Architectural Review Sub-Committee had no concerns upon their review of the project. 

 
Vice Chair Wright OPENED the public hearing, indicated that proper notification 
had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.  
 
Kristen Updegrove: Ms. Updegrove stated concerns with the probability of traffic on 
Clayton Road, which is used for access to her property as well as by three other 
neighbors.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
March 30, 2011 
 

Marla and Tony Sadati, property owner/applicants: Mrs. Sadati responded to the 
previous speaker’s concerns. She shared that they are in the process of selling their 
home in Corona and plan to retire at this property.  
 
In response to the Commission, Mrs. Sadati clarified that Clayton Road is one of two 
entrances onto their property, and Clayton Road would be used primarily by a vehicle 
pulling a trailer to access the property. Mr. Sadati also confirmed that the corral cover 
would be for personal use only. 
 
Steven Davidovich: Mr. Davidovich noted concerns with the renters living at the 
property, adding that he has had problems with the number of people living there. 
 
David Bruce: Mr. Bruce stated concerns with potential traffic.  
 
Vice Chair Wright CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to 
the Commission.  
 
In response to PC Henderson, Mr. Sadati stated that there are two families living on the 
property; one of the families has recently lost their home so he offered them a 
temporary residence. He added that as far as he knew the current renters do not park 
on the street as there is plenty of space available on the property. When asked about a 
trailer on the property, Mr. Sadati stated that it is parked temporarily and is not 
occupied; if necessary, he added that he will have the trailer removed.   
 
In response to PC Leonard, Mr. Sadati replied that there is no one living in the garage.   
 
PC Jaffarian noted for the benefit of the public present that the property is large enough 
to allow up to 16 horses, therefore the size of the corral cover is compatible to this large 
lot.   
 
M/S JAFFARIAN/HENDERSON to adopt Resolution 2011-21, approving Conditional 
Use Permit 2011-03, to allow a 3,240 square-foot corral-cover at 4057 Pedley Avenue. 
 
Under Discussion, PC Henderson addressed the property owners/applicants noting that 
they must abide by all the conditions of the CUP and that no one is to live in the 
workshop or in any trailers.  
 
AYES: WRIGHT, HENDERSON, JAFFARIAN, LEONARD  
ABSENT:  HEDGES       Motion Passed 
 

B. Resolution 2011-___: Conditional Use Permit 2011-05 (Klinkenborg): A 
Request for Approval to allow a 1,512 Square-Foot Detached Garage 
Building at 2285 Santa Anita Road Located within the A-1-20 Zone. 
Recommended Action: Approval (SP Robles) 

 
SP Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. She noted that this 
item had been brought forward previously but denied by PC without prejudice. SP 
Robles stated that the property owner re-submitted this revised plan.  



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
March 30, 2011 
 

In response to the Commission, SP Robles stated that the slope at the rear of the 
property is pre-existing, and that the pictures provided with the staff report are examples 
only.  
 
Vice Chair Wright OPENED the public hearing, indicated that proper notification 
had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak. With no 
one wishing to speak, he brought discussions back to the Commission. 
 
In Discussion, based on concerns by the Planning Commission, the following input was 
offered by the Commission, stating that the property owner/applicant has ample space 
in his back yard area to move the proposed building closer to the pool area, without 
filling in the pool and still have the required animal-keeping area needed.  
 
Further discussion ensued. 
 
Roger Klinkenborg, applicant: Mr. Klinkenborg noted that he didn’t favor filling in the 
pool but offered this as an option in order to get approval. He appreciated the 
Commission’s input and would like a chance to incorporate the suggestions into his 
plan.   
 
M/S HENDERSON/JAFFARIAN to continue this item for two weeks for the opportunity 
for the applicant to make changes to the plan as per suggestions offered. 
AYES: WRIGHT, HENDERSON, JAFFARIAN, LEONARD  
ABSENT:  HEDGES       Motion Passed 
  

C. Resolution 2011-___: Conditional Use Permit 2011-04 (Johnson): A 
Request for Approval to Allow a 1,296 Square-Foot Workshop at 1584 
Harness Lane located within the Norco Hills Specific Plan. Recommended 
Action: Approval (SP Robles) 

 
SP Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. She stated that she 
has reviewed the plan and it meets all requirements, adding that it had also been 
reviewed by the Architectural Review Sub-Committee.  
 
Vice Chair Wright OPENED the public hearing, indicated that proper notification 
had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak. With no 
one wishing to speak, he brought discussions back to the Commission. 
 
PCs Henderson and Leonard commended the design, its location and that all 
requirements were met. 
 
M/S HENDERSON/JAFFARIAN to adopt Resolution 2011-24, approving Conditional 
Use Permit 2011-04, to allow a 1,296 square-foot workshop at 1584 Harness Lane. 
AYES: WRIGHT, HENDERSON, JAFFARIAN, LEONARD  
ABSENT:  HEDGES       Motion Passed 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
March 30, 2011 
 

D. Resolution 2011-___: Conditional Use Permit 2010-11 (Louk): A Request 
for Approval to Allow All Automotive Uses Including Vehicle Sales (Used) 
and Repair at 2100 Hamner Avenue located within Norco Auto Mall 
Specific Plan. Recommended Action: Approval (PD King) 

 
PD King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Division. He stated that no 
changes or new additions are being suggested to the building or the lot. He requested 
that condition number 21 be removed as the 5-years’ time limit was intended to allow a 
new car dealership to return to this location. PD King shared that the applicant would 
consider a new-car franchise agreement should the opportunity present itself in the 
future.   
 
In response to Commission concerns, PD King stated that notification of this public 
hearing was forwarded to the existing new-car dealerships near this property. He added 
that neither has responded with any concerns. He also noted that the repair facility will 
run as a separate entity and will be open to the public. 
 
Vice Chair Wright OPENED the public hearing, indicated that proper notification 
had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.  
 
Betzalel “Ben” Louk, applicant: Mr. Louk commended the staff for their assistance 
and agreed with the Commission that competition is good for everyone. He confirmed 
that the sales and repair facility will be two separate entities and added that he is 
excited to get started.  
 
PC Jaffarian reminded the applicant that all vehicle-servicing will be done inside the 
building and that there is no overnight parking allowed.  
 
Karen Leonard: Mrs. Leonard stated that she is excited to get one more business in 
the City. She also noted her concerns regarding signage, adding that all signs look 
professional and consistent. 
 
Vice Chair Wright CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to 
the Commission.  
 
PC Jaffarian agreed with the previous speaker. In response to signage questions, PD 
King stated that the Auto Mall Specific Plan has its own signage criteria to follow, adding 
that this particular property is allowed one more sign.  
 
M/S JAFFARIAN/LEONARD to adopt Resolution 2011-23, approving Conditional Use 
Permit 2011-11 with the removal of Condition 21, to allow a used automobile dealer and 
an auto repair business at 2100 Hamner Avenue located within Norco Auto Mall 
Specific Plan. 
 
AYES: WRIGHT, HENDERSON, JAFFARIAN, LEONARD  
ABSENT:  HEDGES       Motion Passed 

 



Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 5 
March 30, 2011 
 

E. Resolution 2011-___: Zone Code Amendment 2011-03 (City): A Request 
for Approval to Amend Chapter 18.37 (Signs) of the Norco Municipal Code 
Regarding New Regulations for the Placement of Temporary Event 
Advertising Signage. Recommended Action: Continue Off-Calendar 
(PD King) 

 
PD King stated that staff recommends this item be continued off-calendar to give time 
for the entire sign code to be reviewed and revised as needed and as time permits in 
the coming year. 

 
M/S JAFFARIAN/HENDERSON to continue this item off calendar. 
AYES: WRIGHT, HENDERSON, JAFFARIAN, LEONARD  
ABSENT:  HEDGES       Motion Passed 

 
10. BUSINESS ITEMS: NONE 

 
11. CITY COUNCIL:       Received and Filed 
 A. Recap of Actions Taken at the March 16, 2011 City Council/Community 

Redevelopment Agency Meeting. 
B. City Council Minutes dated March 2, 2011 

 
12. PLANNING COMMISSION: Oral Reports from Various Committees: PC Jaffarian 
shared the process he follows when he receives items for review from staff. 
 
13. STAFF: Current Work Program dated March 24, 2011: Received and Filed 
 
14. OTHER MATTERS  
 A. Follow-up on Items from Previous Meetings (Director King): NONE 
 
 PC Leonard shared that he attended the soft opening of the newest family 

restaurant in town, Rustic Café. He stated this restaurant serves delicious food 
at a comparable price. 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT: Vice Chair Wright adjourned the meeting at 7:58 PM 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
____________________ 
Steve King 
Planning Secretary 
 
/di-78174 


